The Cornish Colony. The arrival of Saint-Gaudens in
the summer of 1885 was the beginning of the Cornish
Colony. He also brought two assistants, Frederick Mac-
Monnies and Philip Martiny, to work with him in the
barn-studio. They were the first in a long series of help-
ers, many of whom went on to important careers of their
own. Herbert Adams, Frances Grimes, James Earle
Frazier, Elsie Ward, and—most important of all—his
brother, Louis Saint-Gaudens, were only some who worked
here and went away enriched by the experience.

That first summer, a friend and painter, George de
Forest Brush, came to Cornish and camped with his
wife near the ravine just below the house. Brush had
lived out west among the Indians for many years, and
the teepee he built for a summer dwelling greatly amused
Saint-Gaudens and his neighbors. The next spring
Thomas W. Dewing, also a painter, rented a house
nearby, soon followed by Henry O. Walker, Charles A.
Platt, and Stephen Parrish. In 1898 Maxfield Parrish
came to Cornish and began to draw those immensely
popular scenes with glowing blue skies so unbelievably
romantic to the viewer, yet so accurate to one who has
seen a Cornish hillside on a July evening when the sky is
clear and the sunset has faded.

As the attractions of Cornish became more widely known,
other artists found Cornish a delightful spot in which to
spend a rural summer working among congenial spirits.

When the 1905 masque was performed, 70 members of
the colony pooled their skills to provide the music,
settings, costumes, scripts, and acting before an appre-
ciative audience of more than twice that number.

There were poets as well at Cornish—Percy MacKaye,
Witter Bynner, and William Vaughn Moody. In 1898
the American novelist Winston Churchill built a home
here which he named Harlakenden House. President
Woodrow Wilson used it as a vacation White House dur-
ing the fateful summer of 1914 and again a year later.
Ten years earlier the young Ethel Barrymore spent a
summer in the colony, renting the house of Henry and
Lucia Fuller. Both were painters, he of landscapes and
she of miniatures. Kenyon Cox, a painter and art critic,
built a home and studio here, and over the years the
prominent residents of Cornish included in their numbers
Charles Dana Gibson; Everette Shinn; John Elliott and
his wife, Maud Howe Elliott, who was a writer; Peter
Finley Dunne, the creator of “Mr. Dooley”; Herbert
Croly, the author of The Promise of American Life and
the editor of The New Republic; Norman Hapgood, the
editor of Collier's magazine; Willard Metcalfe, the land-
scape painter; Louis Shipman, a playwright, and his wife,
Ellen, who designed many of the famous Cornish gar-
dens; and Arthur Whiting, a composer and musician.

This circle of talented spirits drew members of certain
moneyed and social circles. Italianate villas rose on hill-
sides and in abandoned pastures. Embellished with
sunken gardens, marble fountains, artfully developed
villas, and rows of Lombardy poplars, a farm community
turned into what local people sometimes called “little
New York.” The swirl of entertainment in this upper-
class Bohemia was gay and elegant, but Thomas Dewing
thought there were “too many picture hats” and left to
seek a more secluded spot.

Today the once-flourishing art life of the Cornish Colony
has departed. Many of the big houses stand neglected,
or altered from former magnificence. Gardens have
vanished or sunk into decay, for few can staff the great
estates. But at the home of Saint-Gaudens, with its well-
kept house, studios which retain a touch of their master’s
hand, carefully designed gardens, and the stirring pros-
pect over the valley, one can relive for a moment an age
gone by, before the income tax, the First World War,
and revolutions in politics and art swept away an Ameri-
can belle epoque that nurtured and enchanted a singular
company of artists at Cornish.

—Frank O. Spinney

About your visit. Saint-Gaudens National Historic Site
is on N.H. 12-A, 18 miles south of Hanover, N.H., and 2
miles from Windsor, Vt. Taxi service is available from
both towns.

The site is open from May through October. Each sum-
mer the Saint-Gaudens Memorial, a cooperating group,
sponsors concerts and exhibitions by contemporary
painters and sculptors.

Administration. Saint-Gaudens National Historic Site is
administered by the National Park Service, U. S. Depart-
ment of the Interior, on cooperation with the trustees of
Saint-Gaudens Memorial.

The superintendent of Saratoga National Historical Park,
R.E.D. 1, Box 113-C, Stillwater, N.Y. 12170, is in charge
of the site.

America’s Natural Resources—the Nation's principal nat-
ural resource agency—has a special obligation to assure
that our expendable resources are conserved, that our
renewable resources are managed to produce optimum
benefits, and that all resources contribute to the progress
and prosperity of the United States.

U.S. DEPARTMENT of the INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
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Augustus Saint-Gaudens was born in Dublin, Ireland,
in 1848, the year of the Potato Famine. His father,
Bernard Paul Ernest, was a French shoemaker from the
little village of Aspet, near the town of Saint-Gaudens in
the foothills of the Pyrenees. During the 1830’s and 40’s
he had wandered from his native country to London and
then on to Dublin, where he met and married Mary
McGuinness of County Longford. Several children were
born to the couple before Bernard, 6 months after the
birth of Augustus, took his family to the United States.
They settled in New York, and there the boy grew up.
When Augustus finished his schooling at 13, he was
apprenticed to a French cameo-cutter. Through his teens
the boy labored long days in his master’s shop. His
father encouraged his urge to draw, and at night Augus-
tus attended the newly opened art school at Cooper
Union. Later he studied at the National Academy of
Design, which was near his home.

When he was 19 and his apprenticeship over, his father
offered him a chance to see the Exposition of 1867 in
Paris. He left with $100 in his pocket, a thorough
knowledge of his craft, and deep confidence in himself.
While waiting for admission to the famous Ecole des
Beaux-Artes, he worked in an Italian cutter’s atelier.
When he was finally accepted a year later, he elected to
study under the respected Jouffroy. Because he received
little money from home, he supported himself by cameo-
cutting. In 1870 the Franco-Prussian War forced him to
leave Paris. He lived and worked in Rome for the next
5 years, except for one brief visit home. His outlook and
skills matured during these years, and his warm per-
sonality attracted a wide circle of friends. both American
and foreign. Among his early patrons were William M.
Evarts and Elihu Root, whose portraits are displayed in
Cornish and at Hamilton College, and through their
influence his name became known in circles that counted.

Rome was also the place of another fortunate meeting.
There he first met Augusta F. Homer of Roxbury, Mass.,
who recorded in her dairy her impression of the artist.

At 27 Saint-Gaudens returned to America and began his
career. A brief stint as a rural painter under John
LaFarge, whose work decorated Trinity Church in
Boston, brought him happily near Miss Homer. He also
established close and lasting friendships with two promis-
ing young architects, Stanford White and Charles McKim.
They would become frequent professional colleagues.

The Farragut statue award in 1876 was a watershed in
Saint-Gaudens’ life. It brought him recognition and
enough security to persuade Augusta Homer’s parents not
to delay further the pair’s marriage. When the statue
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“No one ever succeeded in art unless born with an uncontrollable instinct toward it.”

Saint-Gaudens’ extremely high relief 1907 gold double eagle.

Grief, the Adams memorial,

1891

The Standing Lincoln, 1887

was exhibited in Paris in 1880 and then cast in bronze
and placed in Madison Square in New York, it was
quickly recognized as a landmark in American sculpture.
“Here was racy characterization joined to original com-
position,” one critic has written, “a public memorial with
the stamp of creativity upon it.” While Saint-Gaudens
was overturning old conventions in sculpture with the
figure, his collaborator, White, was contributing a new
approach in pedestal design.

Shortly after their wedding in 1877, Saint-Gaudens and
his bride sailed for Paris, where he knew he could find
the surroundings that would call forth his best. In Paris,
Saint-Gaudens made the first of a long series of bas-
relief portraits that revealed his mastery of delicate line
and sensitive modeling. He also undertook a new role
as leader among his fellow artists. Just before he left
New York he took part in a revolt by his generation
against the stifling academicism of an older group. One
outcome was the organization of the Society of American
Artists, of which he was a founder. He now became a
leader of the American group and helped choose the
American paintings for the International Exposition of
1878.

After the Farragut statue Saint-Gaudens no longer had
to struggle to obtain commissions. They flowed into his
studio in an almost overwhelming stream. “The Randall,”
“The Puritan,” “The Standing Lincoln”—about which
he was thinking when he first came to Cornish—the
ever-lengthening series of relief portraits, all these he
welcomed. Sometimes it appeared to his friends that he
undertook too much, that he found it difficult to say no
when he should have for the sake of his welfare and his
work. Saint-Gaudens also felt keenly his duties to those
who would come after him. As he had benefited from
his teachers, so he thought himself obliged to instruct.
In numerous private ways he helped aspiring young
sculptors, and through the classrooms of the Art Stu-
dents League he reached many more. He taught stead-
ily from 1888 to 1897.

Besides his teaching, Saint-Gaudens gave generously of
his time to other causes. He was an advisor to the
Columbian Exposition of 1893, and suggested his former
pupil, MacMonnies, and his friend and contemporary,
Daniel Chester French, for important commissions. He
made many speeches on behalf of the American Acad-
emy in Rome, an institution he cherished, and per-
suaded Henry Clay Frick to give $100,000 as an endow-
ment. He later spent much time in Washington working
with his friend McKim and Daniel Burnham of Chicago on
the MacMillan Commission, making recommendations for
the preservation and development of the Nation’s Capital.

His achievements during the 1880’s and 90's included
the Amor Caritas purchased later by the French Govern-
ment for the Luxembourg Museum in Paris, the Diana
for the tower of Stanford White’s Madison Square Gar-
den, the portrait of Robert Louis Stevenson, which he
later modified into the memorial to the author in St.
Giles Cathedral in Edinburgh, and the bust of General
William T. Sherman, which finally evolved into the
masterful equestrian statue now standing in New York
on Fifth Avenue near Central Park. He began the Shaw
Memorial for Boston Common during this time and con-
tinued work on it for 14 years. And for Henry Adams
he created the haunting memorial (sometimes called
Grief) to Adams wife, which stands in Rock Creek
Cemetery in Washington, D. C.

At the turn of the century the Sherman statue won the
Grand Prix in the Paris Salon of 1900. It was there also
that Saint-Gaudens learned of the malignancy which sent
him back to Boston for surgery and which led to his
decision to return permanently to Cornish. These last 7
years were productive too, in spite of his diminishing
energy and the pain caused by cancer. He finally com-
pleted the Sherman to his satisfaction, and it was un-
veiled in New York in 1903. His summer neighbor,
John Hay, sat for a bust. He finished the Stevenson
Memorial and sculptured two other important works—
the monument to Ireland’s Charles Parnell for Dublin
and the heroic seated Lincoln, which many mistakenly
assume to be the figure in the Lincoln Memorial, for
another park in Chicago. When President Theodore
Roosevelt, a friend and admirer, asked him to apply his
talents to United States coinage, he magnificently rede-
signed the $10 and $20 gold pieces, today treasured by
collectors. Altogether, in three decades of work he
produced nearly 150 sculptures. Honors came to him in
these last years. Harvard, Princeton, and Yale granted
him honorary degrees. He was elected a member of the
Royal Academy in London and the French Legion of
Honor.

But treatments could not arrest Saint-Gaudens’ illness,
and his health continued to decline. He courageously
kept at his work and weathered such setbacks as the
loss of the upper studio by fire in 1904. He rebuilt the
studio the next year and filled it with assistants whom he
personally supervised. His productivity never faltered
during those last years, even though he required a kind
of sedan chair to move from place to place and the
constant attention of a trained nurse. By early 1907
Saint-Gaudens was bedridden, but still cheerful. A few
days before his death on August 3, 1907, he lay watch-
ing the sun set behind Mount Ascutney. “It's very beau-
tiful,” he said, “but T want to go farther away.”





